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Joseph D. Moita 
(925) 783-6260 

Joe@moitalaw.com 

February 23, 2024 
 
City of Clayton  
Planning Commission  
6000 Heritage Trail,  
Clayton, CA 94517 

SENT VIA EMAIL 
Phone:  925-673-7300 
Email: Community Development Director - DanaA@claytonca.gov;  
 Assistant Planner - MilanS@claytonca.gov 
   
Re:  Request for Extension of Approval of the Development Plan Permit (DP-01-19) for the 
Oak Creek Canyon Development 
 
Dear City of Clayton Planning Commission,  
 
Last year Jim Moita and I attended a Planning Commission meeting in November. At that time 
the lawsuit inducing Olivia project’s high density and height in the downtown area of Clayton 
ruffled feathers with many Clayton residents.  
 
At the time this Oak Creek Canyon (“Project”) was entitled, the City of Clayton’s RHINA 
allocation was 141 units. This year’s Housing Element Updated, 6th Cycle 2023 – 2031, it is clear 
the City must build additional housing to a tune of 570 units by 2031.1  As a potential path to 
realistically achieving this goal, the City should continue to revisit the Marsh Creek Road Specific 
Plan for which this Oak Creek Canyon development project is among the first keys to unlocking 
access, utilities, and storm drainage infrastructure.  
 
Given the significant delay in this project’s development, seeing that the original entitlements were 
granted in 2021, we feel that it is wholly appropriate for the Planning Commission to revisit the 
project with fresh eyes. We have some comments related to existing conditions of approval, but 
more importantly a significant deviation from the Marsh Creek Road Specific Plan’s (“MCRSP”) 
Infrastructure Element.  
 
While we believe the existing conditions of approval are clear, we propose the following conditions 
of approval be amended to leave no doubt that the 48’ right of way road improvements shall serve 
as the gateway to Subsection A of the MCRSP.  

 
1 City of Clayton Housing Element Revised December 2023 
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Condition of Approval # 122 

 
 Existing Language: 
122. __________ Prior to approval of any grading or construction plans or maps, the Developer 
shall provide any necessary rights of entry, drainage easements, slope and/or grading easements, as 
may be required by the City Engineer, from adjoining property owners. Refer also to Advisory 
Notes. 
 
 Suggested Modification:  
 
122. __________ Prior to approval of any grading or construction plans or maps, the Developer 
shall provide any necessary rights of entry, drainage easements, slope and/or grading easements, as 
may be required by the City Engineer, from to adjoining property owners. Refer also to Advisory 
Notes. (Strike Through & Bold) 

Condition of Approval # 85 
 
Per condition of Approval 85, given Mr. and Mrs. Moita are the only current residents whose 
physical access and address will be changed, we respectfully request the road be named Diablo 
Road with their address bearing the name 1 Diablo Road, consistent with City Council Resolution 
No. 68-2003.  

NON-CONFORMANCE WITH MARSH CREEK ROAD SPECIFIC PLAN 
INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT  

 
The current project, as approved in 2021 is not in conformance with the MCRSP’s requirements 
in that the Project does not provide adequate approximate runoff storage detention sizing as 
memorialized and defined in Table 5 on page 117 of the MCRSP.   
  
The Marsh Creek Road Specific Plan at page 117 states:  
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“Detention basins should be located as follows:  
 

 Development Area A: At the mouth of Oak Creek Canyon on the North 
State Development property near the intersection of Marsh Creek Road 
and Diablo Parkway, and/or along the general alignment of Oak Creek.”  
Marsh Creek Road Specific Plan, at pg 117 

 
The MCRSP is clear in defining the Project site’s location as the designated detention location 
for the entirety of Subsection A. The Project’s proposed detention is wholly inadequate and falls 
significantly short of the 7.8 Acre Feet required by the plan. While it is understandable that the 
City is only requiring this Project to build out a detention facility with capacity to serve the 
immediate project, the concern and issues lies in the fact that the Project now divorces itself 
entirely from the MCRSP’s Chapter IX Infrastructure Element’s planning for Subsection A’s 
detention infrastructure.   
 
In fact, the approved plan modified the land use to allow for an additional home, specifically Lot 
6, to be built on the prior identified detention location. This unfairly deprives the Moitas, 
successors in interest to the Heartland properties, of their rights with respect to the MCRSP. The 
Staff Report provides zero analysis or justification for granting such deviation. Attached you will 
find a copy of the Moitas financial contribution contract for planning of this area from 1992.  
 
By granting an extension at this time, the city opens the door to legal liability anew for judicial 
mandamus review of the inconsistencies between the Project and the MCRSP, and potentially a 
fresh claim for a regulatory taking. We therefore respectfully request the City to continue this 
item until the sufficiency of the detention basin to serve Subsection A of the MCRSP can be 
properly evaluated by the City Engineer, and if needed –and as we suspect—the  proposed plan 
can be modified to accommodate Subsection A’s detention basin needs and be found in 
conformance with the MCRSP.  
 
As outlined in the 2005 letter from Heartland (#4 attachment below) we would like to clear title  
for the City and for ourselves. The Moitas, in good faith, have approached the Seeno’s with the 
agreement that proposed funding/access agreement that clears the issue that Heartland wrote to 
the City to clear 24 years ago.  
 
Given the City’s 570 net new unit allocation under the 6th RHINA Cycle, we believe it is prudent 
for the City to evaluate this Project carefully to not stem future development of the MCRSP to 
necessitate future density similar to the Olivia project within Clayton’s already built out city.  This 
may take some time so we would appreciate if the decision on the 1-year extension be delayed at a 
minimum 60 days until the storm drain basin sizing sufficiency is answered and we can work with 
Albert Seeno II to hopefully resolve our ongoing access issue by Seeno signing the proposed 
funding/access agreement. 
 
I have also attached the following documents: 
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1. Draft funding/access Agreement that Albert Seeno III provided when he controlled the 
project 3 years ago.  

2. Updated draft funding/access Agreement sent to Albert Seeno II (who is controlling the 
project in 2024) last week.  

3. Copy of 1992 contract between Jim Moita and the City of Clayton for a specific analysis 
of the 32 acres owned by Moita at that time. 

4. Heartland letter dated 2005 requesting to clear title issues caused by City, Seeno, and 
Heartland in a joint agreement. Note the current drafted funding/access agreement clears 
title moving forward which is what should be completed now to avoid problems in the 
future.  

5. Relevant Sections of the Approved 1995 Marsh Creek Road Specific Plan (1995 
MCRSP).  

 
 
 
 

 
          __________________ 

Vincent Moita  
Attorney at law 



Attachment 1 

2021 Seeno Funding Agreement   









Attachment 2 

2024 Seeno Funding Agreement   









Attachment 3 

Letter of Agreement for Site Specific Analysis of the 
Moita Property as Part of the Marsh Creek Road 

Specific Plan EIR 

















Attachment 4 

Heartland Letter - 2005 







Attachment 5 

Relevant Sections 

 of  

Marsh Creek Road Specific Plan  
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